

Bylaws of the SAA Women's Intergroup

I. Name of Intergroup

- A. The name of the group shall be the SAA Women's Intergroup (herein called *The Intergroup*).

II. Purpose of Intergroup

- A. Our primary purpose is to support the (woman) sex addict who still suffers.
- B. We will lead or assist in developing, funding and encouraging retreats, workshops, and other events, activities, and initiatives, as well as supporting individual women members at these events or through these initiatives.
- C. In doing so, *The Intergroup* may partner with the ISO (especially the Women's Outreach Committee) and various other SAA groups, intergroups, committees, and Areas.

III. Members

- A. Membership in *The Intergroup* shall be open to all SAA members and groups who share our purpose. There is no gender requirement.
- B. SAA groups may send representatives; and any SAA member may also join on their own. Member groups may be a part of other intergroups at the same time.
- C. In keeping with the 9th Tradition of SAA, *The Intergroup* is accountable to the SAA women we serve.

IV. Officers

- A. The officers of *The Intergroup* shall be Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer.

V. Meetings

- A. *The Intergroup* shall meet regularly with an agreed upon schedule.
- B. Special meetings may be called by the Chair or upon the written request of two voting members. The purpose, time and place or media of the meeting shall be stated in the call. Except in the case of an emergency, at least five days notice shall be given for a called meeting.

VI. Voting

- A. Voting members shall be all members in attendance at a regular or special meeting of *The Intergroup*.
- B. Any member may make a motion or participate in discussion; a second to the motion is required before discussion or voting.
- C. Motions may be amended or withdrawn at any time by the maker prior to voting; an amended motion must be seconded again.
- D. A minimum of 4 members must be present to pass a motion. Substantial unanimity, usually a minimum of a two-thirds majority, is required to pass any motion.
- E. Electronic voting is permitted, according to the agreed upon guidelines.

VII. Elections

- A. Requirements for holding a *The Intergroup* officer position:
 - 1. *Six months membership in SAA*
 - 2. *Working a program with a sponsor, and the approval of the sponsor.*
- B. Any member of *The Intergroup* may nominate a qualified individual for an officer position
- C. A simple majority is required to elect the officers. If no majority is achieved, the names of all candidates receiving at least 1 vote shall be put in a “hat”, and the name drawn randomly.
- D. Elections shall be held at the first scheduled meeting of the event year. Officers shall serve for a term of up to one year until the next election, except for the Treasurer who serves a 3-year term. Our service year, for term of elections, is from the May meeting to the May meeting. Officers may be re-elected following their term. Committee heads will be appointed by the Chair, who will set their term of office.

VIII. Removal from Position

- A. Reasons for removing an officer from their elected position may include but are not limited to:
 - 1. *Non-fulfillment of the duties of that position*
 - 2. *Repeated absences from Meeting of The Intergroups*
- B. Removing an officer from office, requires:
 - 1. *a written request to the chair by two members, followed by:*
 - 2. *notice at a regularly scheduled meeting, then followed by:*
 - 3. *a vote at the next regularly scheduled meeting.*
 - 4. *A two-thirds majority in a meeting with at least 4 members attending is needed for removal.*
- C. In cases of resignation or removal, the Chair shall appoint an interim officer, pending election of an officer, to complete the unexpired term, at the next regular meeting of *The Intergroup*.

IX. Acceptance and use of Donations

- A. *The Intergroup* may accept donations from any SAA member, meeting, group or Area. Donations are not accepted from outside (non-SAA) persons or meetings.
- B. Donations are to be used or distributed for SAA women members only, or for events which include and support women.
- C. *The Intergroup* may pay for recovery events and resources, and then assign oversight for the event or resource to another partner SAA organization (such as the Women’s Outreach Committee), for benefit of SAA women members only.

X. Amendments to *The Intergroup* Bylaws

- A. Any member may propose an amendment to the bylaws at a regular meeting of *The Intergroup*.
- B. A two-thirds majority of voting members present is necessary to amend.

XI. Disbanding *The Intergroup*

A. The Intergroup may ratify disbanding itself only if such a motion was announced on the google group at least fourteen days before it is scheduled for a vote in a meeting.

B. If The Intergroup disbands, after paying all outstanding debts, The Intergroup shall donate any remaining assets wherever possible to an SAA organization or organizations having similar objectives. This should be completed within one year of the final meeting.

Approved by: Dan B [WA] Secretary, Acting Chair

Judy G [TX], Dan B, Deb W [WV], Mike K [NC], [Carly M absent], Directors

Date: Regularly scheduled Business meeting, January 27, 2022 _____

WIG and WIG Subcommittees Email Voting Requirements:

1. It shall be the responsibility of the Chair to initiate an online vote. The Chair may delegate to another Officer, Board Member, or workgroup chair.
2. Each business motion or topic for voting will be clearly defined and the voting process will begin and end as specified by the Chair; the voting may be either ANONYMOUS or OPEN, but not both, determined by the chair.
3. Members included in the email vote mailing list will be all the members present at that last WIG business meeting or workgroup meeting, plus all excused absences, as recorded by the Secretary.
4. Recognizing the limitations that members of the Committee may have to respond to such a vote, the voting period will be no less than three (3) days and no more than seven (7) days.
5. Substantial unanimity of a quorum will be the standard for approval of any business motion or topic presented.
6. The results of the vote will be reported by the Secretary during the next committee meeting and will be entered into the official record via the minutes of that meeting.
7. Online votes for WIG subcommittees shall follow the same general procedures as outlined above.
8. There will be no online voting involving spending of WIG treasury. Treasury spending issues are to be addressed during monthly WIG meeting only.

Record of edits and Group Conscience Decisions:

Approved January 27, 2022

- Removed Board of Directors
- Modified where the money goes if we disband, to also be in support of the woman sex addict.

Here were the motions, passed without dissent at our regular business meeting Jan 27, 2022

1. Motion (passed and approved by the Board): Eliminating Directors and the Board of Directors

I move that the bylaws be changed to remove all references to the Board of Directors, and Directors themselves; by removing all of the following (in **BOLD RED**):

IV. Officers

...

B. The Board of Directors shall be comprised of at least one officer; it shall also include at least one additional, At-Large Director(s), for a total of no more than 5 Directors in all.

=====
VII. Elections

...

D. ... Director’s term of office shall be two years, but no later than the second service year elections. ... [Officers] and Directors [may be re-elected following their term.]

=====
IX. Acceptance and use of Donations

...

D. All grants and donations approved during regular SAA Women’s Intergroup meetings must also be approved by the Board of Directors for carrying out the purpose described in Section II.

=====
X. Amendments to *The Intergroup* Bylaws

...

C. All changes to the Bylaws passed during regular SAA Women’s Intergroup meetings must also be approved by the Board of Directors before they take effect.

2. Motion (Passed): Changing how we disband, and where the money goes.

I move that the following change be made to our Bylaws:

Replace the entire section **XI. Disbanding The Intergroup;**

This section now reads:

XI. Disbanding The Intergroup;

A. If *The Intergroup* disbands, all money remaining after payment of outstanding debts will be donated to the ISO

To be replaced with:

XI. Disbanding The Intergroup;

A. The Intergroup may ratify disbanding itself only if such a motion was announced on the google group at least fourteen days before it is scheduled for a vote in a meeting.

B. If *The Intergroup* disbands,-after paying all outstanding debts, *The Intergroup* shall donate any remaining assets wherever possible to an SAA organization or organizations having similar objectives. This should be completed within one year of the final meeting.

Approved June 28, 2018

Typo letter "s" removed - July 26, 2018

Added SAA before groups in Section II, C. – July 27, 2019

Added Email Voting Requirements Section VI, E. – May 23, 20

Here is what is posted on WIG Google Group (Older version)

Bylaws of the SAA Women's Intergroup

- XII. I. Name of Intergroup
- A. A. The name of the group shall be the SAA Women's Intergroup (herein called *The Intergroup*).**
- XIII. II. Purpose of Intergroup
- A. A. Our primary purpose is to support the (woman) sex addict who still suffers.**
- B. B. We will lead or assist in developing, funding and encouraging, retreats, workshops, and other events, activities, and initiatives, as well as supporting individual women members at these events or through these initiatives.**
- C. C. In doing so, *The Intergroup* may partner with the ISO (especially the Women's Outreach Committee) and various other groups, intergroups, committees, and Areas.**
- XIV. III. Members
- A. A. Membership in *The Intergroup* shall be open to all SAA members and groups who share our purpose. There is no gender requirement.**
- B. B. SAA groups may send representatives; and any SAA member may also join on their own. Member groups may be a part of other intergroups at the same time.**
- C. C. In keeping with the 9th Tradition of SAA, *The Intergroup* is accountable to the SAA women we serve.**
- XV. IV. Officers
- A. A. The officers of *The Intergroup* shall be Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer.**
- XVI. V. Meetings
- A. A. *The Intergroup* shall meet regularly with an agreed upon schedule.**

B. B. Special meetings may be called by the Chair or upon the written request of two voting members. The purpose, time and place or media of the meeting shall be stated in the call. Except in the case of an emergency, at least five days notice shall be given for a called meeting.

XVII. VI. Voting

A. A. Voting members shall be all members in attendance at a regular or special meeting of *The Intergroup*.

B. B. Any member may make a motion or participate in discussion; a second to the motion is required before discussion or voting.

C. C. Motions may be amended or withdrawn at any time by the maker prior to voting; an amended motion must be seconded again.

D. D. A minimum of 4 members must be present to pass a motion. Substantial unanimity, usually a minimum of a two-thirds majority, is required to pass any motion.

XVIII. VII. Elections

A. A. Requirements for holding a *The Intergroup* officer position:

- 1. 1. *Six months membership in SAA***
- 2. 2. *Working a program with a sponsor, and the approval of the sponsor.***

B. B. Any member of *The Intergroup* may nominate a qualified individual for an officer position

C. C. A simple majority is required to elect the officers. If no majority is achieved, the names of all candidates receiving at least 1 vote shall be put in a "hat", and the name drawn randomly.

D. D. Elections shall be held at the first scheduled meeting of the event year. Officers shall serve for a term of up to one year until the next election, except for the Treasurer who serves a 3-year term. Our service year, for term of elections, is from the May meeting to the May meeting.

E. E. Committee heads will be appointed by the Chair, who will set their term of office.

XIX. VIII. Removal from Position

A. A. Reasons for removing an officer from their elected position may include but are not limited to:

- 1. 1. *Non-fulfillment of the duties of that position***
- 2. 2. *Repeated absences from Meeting of *The Intergroups****

B. B. Removing an officer from office, requires:

1. 1. a written request to the chair by two members, followed by:
2. 2. notice at a regularly scheduled meeting, then followed by:
3. 3. a vote at the next regularly scheduled meeting.
4. 4. A two-thirds majority in a meeting with at least 4 members attending is needed for removal.

C. C. In cases of resignation or removal, the Chair shall appoint an interim officer, pending election of an officer, to complete the unexpired term, at the next regular meeting of *The Intergroup*.

XX. IX. Acceptance and use of Donations

A. A. *The Intergroup* may accept donations from any SAA member, meeting, group or Area. Donations are not accepted from outside (non-SAA) persons or meetings.

B. B. Donations are to be used or distributed for SAA women members only, or for events which include and support women.

C. C. *The Intergroup* may pay for recovery events and resources, and then assign oversight for the event or resource to another partner SAA organizations (such as the Women's Outreach Committee), for benefit of SAA women members only.

XXI. X. Amendments to *The Intergroup* Bylaws

A. A. Any member may propose an amendment to the bylaws at a regular meeting of *The Intergroup*.

B. B. A two-thirds majority of voting members present is necessary to amend.

C. C. The amendment shall go into effect upon notification of member groups as defined in Article III.

XXII. XI. Disbanding *The Intergroup*

A. A. If *The Intergroup* disbands, all money remaining after payment of outstanding debts will be donated to the ISO.

Approved by: _____Michelle S, MD_____Chair

_____Deb W, WV_____Sec'y

Date: _____ June 28, 2018 _____